58 Exeter

City Council

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE

Date: Thursday 28 August 2025
Time: 10.00 am
Venue: Bad Homburg Room, Civic Centre, Paris Street, Exeter

Members are invited to attend the above meeting to consider the items of business.

If you have an enquiry regarding any items on this agenda, please contact Liz Smith, Democratic
Services Officer on 01392 265425 or email democratic.services@exeter.gov.uk

Entry to the Civic Centre can be gained through the Customer Service Centre, Paris Street.

Membership -
Councillors Mitchell, K, Williams, R and Holland

Agenda

Part I: Items suggested for discussion with the press and public present

1 Appointment of Chair
To appoint a Chair for the meeting.

2 Declarations of Interest

Councillors are reminded of the need to declare any disclosable pecuniary
interests that relate to business on the agenda and which have not already been
included in the register of interests, before any discussion takes place on the
item. Unless the interest is sensitive, you must also disclose the nature of the
interest. In accordance with the Council's Code of Conduct, you must then leave
the room and must not participate in any further discussion of the item.
Councillors requiring clarification should seek the advice of the Monitoring Officer
prior to the day of the meeting.

3 LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985 EXCLUSION
OF PRESS AND PUBLIC

It is considered unlikely that the Committee would wish to exclude the
press and public during consideration of the items on this agenda. If,
however, the Committee were to exclude the press and public, a resolution
in the following form should be passed:

“RECOMMENDED that, under Section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972,
the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the particular item(s) on the
grounds that it (they) involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in
paragraph(s) of Part | of Schedule 12A of the Act.”


mailto:democratic.services@exeter.gov.uk

To pass the following resolution:

RESOLVED that, under Section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the
press and public be excluded from the meeting for items and on the grounds that
if involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraphs 1

and 2 of Part | of Schedule 12A of the Act.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS) ACT 1976

4 Application to Renew Hackney Carriage / Private Hire Vehicle licence over

10 years old
To consider the report of the Head of Service - Environment and Waste. (Pages 3 -
60)
TOWN POLICE CLAUSES ACT 1847
5 Hearing to Determine Whether a Holder of a Hackney Carriage / Private Hire
Drivers Licence is a fit and proper person to hold a the licence
To consider the report of the Head of Service - Environment and Waste. (Pages 61
- 104)
6 Hearing to Determine Whether a Holder of a Hackney Carriage / Private Hire
Drivers Licence is a fit and proper person to hold a the licence
To consider the report of the Head of Service - Environment and Waste. (Pages
105 -132)

Individual reports on this agenda can be produced in other formats on
request to Democratic Services on 01392 265425.



Agenda Item 4

REPORT TO LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE
Date of Hearing: 28 August 2025

Report of: Environmental Health and Community Safety Manager

Type of Application: RENEWAL of a licence relating to a Hackney Carraige vehicle over
10 years old.

Legislation: Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976

Town Police Clauses Act 1847

1. Whatis the report about?

1.1 An application attached at Appendix A has been received from the Applicant, a
licensed taxi driver seeking permission for the renewal of a hackney carriage licence
for a vehicle which will be 10 years old on 30 July 2025. This is a matter that cannot
be dealt with under delegated powers.

2. Background:

2.1 The vehicle that is being presented for licensing as a hackney carriage vehicle is a 4
passenger, Toyota Yaris, registration number ||} I, with a date of first
registration of 30 June 2015. A copy of the vehicle registration document is attached

as Appendix B.

2.2 The vehicle is a hybrid Euro 6 standard and is Ultra Low Emission Zone (ULEZ)
compliant emitting 75g/km of CO2.

3. Report Details:

3.1 The vehicle has a current MOT certificate dated 18 June 2025 and expires
02.07.2026. The mileage recorded at the MOT inspection was 110,884 miles. The
MOT certificate and history are attached as Appendix C. The MOT history shows that
the vehicle has failed the MOT test on 6 occasions since 2018. In addition to the MOT
certificate there is an independent mechanical inspection report, which has been
submitted, this is dated 18 June 2026 and is attached as Appendix D. Photos for the
vehicle are attached at Appendix E. Upon inspection by a Council Officer the vehicle
was found to be in reasonable condition for the age. The vehicle was first plated by
Exeter City Council on 16 June 2018 and has been licensed since that date.

Page 3



3.2 The Licensing Sub-Committee must have regard to the Council’s the Practices and
Procedures for the control of Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicles, Drivers and
Operators and the Code of Conduct for Licensed Drivers (‘Taxi Policy’)

3.3 Vehicles presented for renewal that are more than 8 years old will be referred to the
licensing sub-committee for determination.

4. What are the legal aspects?

4.1 Section 37 of the Town Police Clauses Act 1847 provides that a district council may
grant a vehicle a Hackney Carriage Licence. Section 47 of the Local Government
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 (‘the Act’) states that a district council may attach
such conditions to a licence as it considers reasonably necessary. The conditions that
may apply are set out in the Taxi Policy.

4.2 Any person aggrieved by a refusal of the Licensing Sub-Committee to grant a vehicle
licence under Section 48 of the Act may appeal to the Magistrates Court within 21
days of receiving written notice of the refusal.

5. Recommendations:

5.1 The Licensing Sub-Committee are asked to determine the application having regard
to current policy.

Head of Service — Environment and Waste

Author: Geraldine Pendlington — Licensing Officer

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1972 (as amended)

Background papers used in compiling this report:-
None

Contact for enquires:

Democratic Services (Committees)
Room 4.36

01392 265275

Page 4



APPENDIX A

AAAAAAAAAAAAAA



APPLICATION FOR THE RENEWAL OF A
A HACKNEY CARRIAGE OR PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLE LICENCE

Mobit e Vehicle

number

= : Vehicle Plate
Hackney Carriage Vehicle Number:

Licence expiry date: 18 August 2025 Driver Licence No

a proprietor of the vehicle or who is concemed either solely or
employing or letting of hire of the vehicle

Address

hereby apply for a for the motor vehicle identified in this application o be used as a *Hackney
Hire within the City of Exeter and | hereby declare that all particulars entered
the best of my knowledge and belief. (*Delete which does not apply)

VEHICLE DETAILS
Make of vehicle: Model of yehicle: Number of passengers

Toyota Yaris 4

Vehicle Registration Document number: Date of first registration:
30.062015

Details of current vehicle insurance: Date insurance expires:
FULL 25.01.2025 /2 ¢

Page 6



not in use? (address):

respect of Private Hire by which Operator, and from what address will the Private Hire
be operated?

Name of Operator:
Address of Operator:

When an application involves the substitution or exchange of an existing vehicle by a new one,
please answer the following questions:

replaced vehicle continue to be used as a Licenced Frivate YES NO
Hire/MHackney

please
private use, taken
etc)

please give
name and address of New
owner

Toyota
Registration number of -
existing licenced vehicle

understand that omissions of incorrect statements will rendes the Licence £ granted, liable © suspension
o revocation and render me liable to prosecution

{ have been given a copy df the conditions refating fo this Licence

S|GNED DATED (7 /7 /2025

See over for notes.



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX B

V5



~ THIS DOCUMENT IS NOT PROOF OF OWNERSHIP.
It mhows who is responsible for registering and taxing the vehicle.

You must make sure that the name
and address printed here is comect.
Ift & not, see section 12

Thinking of buying this vehicla?
Buyer beware...

to avoid beng tmcked into buying &
stolen vehicla?

For tips and adwica go »
www.gov.uk/checks-when-buying-a-used-car

| 2. Data protection
DVLA handles your personal data n accordance with road

to he police and i other parties where the law allows it For further information about
how we process your Gata, your righi;s1 Sgd who 1o contact, see

3 Special notes {these notes cannot be removed)

NG . OF FORMER KEEPERS 1
¢ DECLARED NEW AT FIRST REGISTRATION




For company Use

'I\‘.
= ter
3 7
b | - =
N e ! H
N
1
1 L i
F;:‘ﬂ X0 27
Eneii =
.-,'___,. - -
el |30
M a B
Y Q31 7]
| I SRR = y ol
| e A et = THLPtanh. ) |
Registerad keaper: | declare that the new
bas‘lofﬂknmwge
Law: If the vehicia 15 5old or transferrad both the regaaiens keaperd SO MUSE B
ricia use only - Piosse o not wrve bafow thiatinal vsc-0118
Doc. Pef, N* 8232 672 2078 bl WD15 LWL W

Des. Codes 189/ 1033300019

L o




This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX C

PPPPPP



MOT test
Driver
VNKKD3D 390
. Standard:
WDISLWL AgenCy
TOYOTA YARIS
[ Mil hi
Mt 96,379 miles
83,252 miles 07.2023

954 miles 07.07.2022

Pass
@
2025
t you can present
UNIT 3 CITY IN HAEL BROWNING WAY, EXETER, EX2 8DD
Qu
N. Bulley

test number
5044 2883 3100

Check that thi visi www.gov.uk/check-mot-history
the details are not e DVSA by email at
enquiries@dvsa.gov.uk orby b 1239000
free ribing

www.gov.uk/mot-reminder 1239000

Pagelofi
V¥T20/2.0



WDIS LNL
TOYOTAYARIS

Checkanather venicle

Colour Fuied fy e Db regis beresd

Red Hybrid Electric (Claan) 30 lune 2015

FMOT walid until

2 July 2026

(Zak an MOGT romindar by emiail ortext

Dawnlaad tesl carlilicales

¥ou can get Aafnrmatian corrected an waur FOT history (sech as mileane or vehicla datails] if it's wmong

«1 Shivw all sections

MOT history
Check milagge racorded at test. exping date, and test oubozmea
=1 Hide
tate hastad Hilaage MOT tast nsmbar
18 June 2025 110,884 miles 5044 2883 3100
PA Ss Tast lacatinn Expiry cate
2 July 2026
T = ey |
Date tested Mileage MIOT best numsar
18 June 2025 11884 miles BO42 1852 8423

FAI L Test location

¥ View lect bneateon

Aapz - immediataly (rmajor defacts):
= HMearside Frant Tyre has a cut In excess of the requirements deep
enaugh ta reach the ply or cords 1756615 (5.2.3 (d) (iX)

Rapae ws soanas postiie [rmaar gafpcks)
= Nearside Registration plate lamp inoperative in the case of multiple
lamps or Eght sources (301083 (i)

Page 15



Dusle fagled iy FHECE T FIAT tesh rarnben

Fduly 2024 245,378 miles 1653 a7aG 2678
PA S 5 Test Locaticon Expiry clate
2 July 2025

F yiew test location

Manlbor ard repain i necessary fadvisofjes):
» Mearside Front Tyre slightly damaged outer sidewall 175/8515 (62,2

CHIUN

B Whal are adesadag?

Dale teshed il FIOT et raarmber
26 July 2023 B2, 255 miles B?98 92230 7E44
PASS Testlocation Expiry date

B August 2024

B Wi tesk location

ate tasted Milerge HOT fest rambar

26 July 2023 83,.25% miles 4456 8033 7403

FAIL

B Wiss TRsl Incakinmn

Lz niot o until repairad (dannenaus getesis )
+ Engine mounting bracket fractured (6.1.8 (2) (i)

RBegair snmediately (major dafscts)
= Maarside Headlamp aim teo high (4.1.2 (a))
& Parking brake lever has excessive movement indicating incorrect

adfustment (116 )}
Liata tested Milgags M test number
T luly 2022 67,954 miles 18372404 2302
PASS Te=sl bealin Expiry data

: & August 2023
i tast lacasian

Plaaitor and regair il nacecsary (advisonies):
* Mearsida Front headlamp bracket damaged but headlamp not insacura

F What are advisories?

Page 16



Date tasted Mileagre MOT test munib=r

T luly 2022 67,953 mlles 5047 9953 7562

FAI L Tast lacation

¥ g tesl localion

Rregair mmmadiztely (major dadrcts]

= MNearside Slde repeater not workimg (4,44 (a) (D)

« Offcide Sida repeater incorrect colour{4.4.3 (a))

+ Maarsioe Headlamp aim too low (4.1.2 (a))

* Front Windscraen wiper doas not clear the windscreen effectively (2.4
() (il

Monitor nd repalr it recessary (advlsories):

+ Mearside Front headlamp brachket damaged but headiamp not insecure

Mearside Front Brake pad(s) wearing thin (1113 {a} (1))

Oifslde Front Brake pad{sh wearing thim {1043 () {13

b ‘What sre defects and advisories?

Dale fasiad Mileage MOT tesk s
28 Juihy 20031 178,953 miles 23%F 0806 3374
PASS Tast lamatian Expiry date

B Augqust 20232

E View test location

Cale tesiad Mileane PEOT tesl number
27 July 2021 52,630 miles 5728 04798706

FAIL Test location

F View et lecalicn

Rrpairimmadintaly (major defects):

+ HMearside Front Tyra has a cut in excess of the requirements deep
enough to reach the ply or cords {522 {d) {i})

= Mearside Rear Brake cable damaged {1,115 (a))

» Oifside Front Hegdlamg insacure (411 (c))

+ Offside Front Headlamp aim too Low {4.1.2 {3}

Monitar and reparr if nacassany (Rowisnrigs)
= MNaarside Raar Brake disc worn, pitted or scored, but not sariously
weakened (1,153 (3) (1M

= Offside Rear Brake dise worn, pitbed ar seored, bul nat seriausly
weakered (1154 (3) i)}

+ HMearside Rear inner Brake padi{s}wearing thin {1013 (& {ii))

= Dffside Rear Inner Brake pad(s)wearing thin (11,13 (a3 (A))

= Offside Rear handbrake cable casing darmaged and splil cable not
darnaged

= hybrid warning light on dash

F What aredafects and aduisories?

Page 17



Lrabe tagtad
T August 2020

PASS

Crale tesiad
TAugust 2020

FAIL

[lilaaga MOT Lest fiumbner

A9 789 milas 2304 3236 206
Test Laeation Eapiey dade
G August 202

- View test location

FMamibor and repair il necessary [aasSaies

= Mearslde Rear Grake dlse Wor, pitted oF S80Ped, DUL Aot 5-EI'|I!||.15['|'
weakenad (11,14 (a) (i)

» Offside Rear Brake disc worn, pitbed or scored, but not serioushy
weakened (L1149 (a) (1))

= Mislge headiamp top mouwnting bracket fabrication mot standard,aim
ok at time of test,

P WAl are sovisnries?

Mileage MO Lest aumber
45,785 miles 4060 27700540

Test Incatinn

B Wiew Lect oo atio

Page 18



Repairimredialaly (mage defecisy

+ Offside Front Headlamp not working on dipped baam {4.1.1{a} i)}

Memitarand repai il aecesaary {advisaries):
« Maarsida Rear Brake disc worn, pitted or soored, but not saricusly
vieakemed (1,114 (o) (i)

= Dffcide Rear Brake disc wom, pitied or scored, but not serlously
weakened (1104 () (i)

= Nifide haadamp tap madnting heacket fakricatinn ot atandard alm
ok at time of test,

b UWhat are dafacts ang sgvisoras?

Date sesten Hileage MOT tesk rumber
T Jume 2019 34,188 miles I35 16881767
PASS Test location Expiry date

29 December 20020

F Viow testlocation

Tt drshes Milmage FICH fost mambier
10 June 2049 34,189 miles 219119854168

FAI L Tast laration

B e lasl lacation

Mn nat drive until recaired (dangerous defects)

= Mearslde Rear Tyre tread depth below requirements of 1.6mm {5.2.3
(=]}

+ OfFsiche Rear Tyre tread depth below reguirements of 1.6emm (5.2.3 (e))

Feepair Immesately {majdr defesis)
* Windscreen wiper does not clear the windscreen effectively (3.4 (b)

Page 19



Brate sested Milzage MOT test nembar

 Jume 2013 19,218 miles 1201 5969 7758
PASS Test lacation Fupiy data
29 June 2015

= Wiawtest bncation

Moniter and repair if nroessary (aduisaries):
= PMgarsige Front Tyre worn close to legal imitfworn on edos (5.2.3 (a))
= Offslde Front Tyre worn cloce to Legad mdtfworn onedge (5.2.3 (&)

= What nre advisesias?

The MOTtest changed on 20 May 2018

DieTecls are now calagiaisad AcCcarding Lo LReir Seven Ty - Carderous, mar, and minar. Sing aul mdre.

Check for vehicle recalls
S T TOYOTA YARIS WD SLWL has outstanding recadls

vl Ghaw

Page 20



APPENDIX D

V.I.R.

PPPPPP



! EXETER CITY COUNCIL APPROVED VEHICLE INSPECTION REPORT.

| Customer Details Report Date: 18
s Report No: 10«
| Exeter Motor Works
Unit 1 City Industrial Estate
Customer’s contact details
Home:

Work:
Mobile:
{EHICLE DETAILS

s OYOTA Registration Number WD15

| Model YARIS HYBRID ICON Colour Red / Black
VIN Checked and confirmed
| Vehicle identity Number (VIN) VNKKD3D390A180213 on vehicle
Yes X No

| V5/Registration document MOT Certificate available and
available and checked checked

|
| Mileage reading In 110888 MOT Expiry Date

L NAEns A » o - z . £
i P 110884 Vehicle Excise Licence Expiry

| Date of inspection 18/06/25 Time of inspection
Location of vehicle Exeter Motor Works, Unit 1 City industrial Estate, Exeter
Lighting Good

| Weather.

o8e notes)

Ramp available.

Good
= (See notes)

. SECURITY CHECK

The vehicle identification number on this vehicle was checked and found to be consistent with the manufacturer's format

SUMMARY REPORT
w READY FOR USE — No faults found, suitable for immediate use

Fat
ADVISABLE REPAIRS ONLY — Suitable for immediate use but advisable repairs s
ESSENTIAL REPAIRS REQUIRED - Not suitable uniess all essential repairs are
advisable repairs, If any are planned for

UNSATISFACTORY — Vehicle has significant deficiencies which are judged to
uneconomical to repair to a satisfactory standard

Please read all pages of this report

Page



S satisfactory
R repainted
= scratch
y X dent

,-"' O corrosion
C
P
w

chip / rust
previous repairs
Wrap Missing

Minor blemishes, which are acceptable fair wear and tear for the vehicle's age, recorded mileage and type, are not
recorded and you should satisfy yourself in this regard

EVIDENCE OF BODYWORK REPAIRS Yes X No

BODYWORK CLEAN Yes X No (See Notes)

’_KEY FOR POINTS ON FOLLOWING PAGES
S Satisfactory for age and recorded mileage
- Could not be checked
X Essential repair requiring immediate attention
A Advisable repair should be considered prior to purchase
N/A Not applicable
Y Yes
N No
Please note: Right = Off side (O/S) and Left = Near side (N/S) as viewed from the driver's seat

Report No: 10410




§ 'r,l
/

éY EXTERIOR — — ey

anel Condition / alignment S 8. Door locks - operation S 11. Mud flaps
Paintwork S 7. Fuel filler cover and cap S i %
Exteriorinmiguie S 8. Softtop / Hard top (operation)  N/A C atch ;J', |
. Glass . S 9. Body damage S 14, Bonnet hinges S
£ | 5. Bumpers / No plates — Ft / Rr S 10. Corrosion Mo . , J
F |
ENGINE COMPARTMENT [ ] PETROL [] DIESEL £ HYBRID No. of CYLINDERS: 4
1t ';00|:—.ni Level / Condition S 22. Power Steering — oil level S 29. Turbo / supercharger ‘\
16. Coolant leaks No 23. Clutch Fluid S 30, Fuel pump / pipes S |
17. Antifreeze * S 24. Brake Fluid S 31. Accelerator linkage S
18. Radiator / Cap S 25. Engine Oil level S 32. Cold starting -
19. Hoses / Pipes S 26. External leaks (upper engine) S 33. Fast idle (cold)
20. Drive Belts - 27. Engine mountings S 34. Noise level (cold)
21. Water Pump (Not visible) - 28. Fuel Injection S 35. Excess fumes / smoke No
Note : To ensure future serviceability, it is important that the engine camshaft belt is replaced at intervals specified by the
M: acturer. It is in your best interests you ensure that this is carried out. * Antifreeze only has a 2/3 year life span and requires its
ngth adjusting after this time or replacing as per manufacturers specifications
ELECTRICAL /| CONTROLS
36.Starting system / Ignition lock S 41. Rear lights & No. plate lights S 49. Instruments S
37. Battery condition S 42. Stop lights S 50. Horn S
38. Battery voltages S 43. Indicator/ Hazard lights S 51. Radio/Cass/CD/Ae S
Normal 12.11 volts S 44 Reverse / Fog lights S 52. Heater / Fan controls S
Starting 10.22 volts S 45, Auxiliary lights N/A 53 Air Con operation S
- Charging 14.54 volts S 46. Interior / Panel lights S 54, Windows / Sun roof S
39. Headlights S 47. Mirrors (electric) S 55. Wipers / Washers S
40. Sidelights / running lights S 48. Controls / Switches S 56. Headlamp wash / wipe S

Note - We are unable to verify dash panel light and switch back lighting operation due to the dayligh ns. Please note that

switching them “on or off” only assesses electrical components. Accuracy of instruments cannot be as

INTERIOR | LUGGAGE COMPARTMENT NUMBER OF SEATS: 5

7. Steering Wheel / Adjustment 64. Door seals [ hinges 71.Rear parcel shelf / load cover
Seat upholstery 65. Interior sills 72. Boot / tailgate lock

t adjustment 66. Headlining / visors 73. Luggage area trim con
Seatbelts 67. Sun roof lllumination light

Carpets / Mats 68. Dash panel (condition) Tool kit

Door trim panels 69, Cigarette lighter Hard / Soft top (condition)
Door fittings / operation 70. Mirrors (internal) Tonneau cover

Z0nunow

-] =l
g O b

/A

~J

o wonw
wzwgmmm
=
~1

ERONT SUSPENSION / STEERING / UNDER FRAME

78. Engine underside leakage No 83. Wheel hubs / bearings S 88. Sub-frames mountings S
79. Steering joints/ ball joints S 84. Springs/suspension units S 89. Suspension arms / mountings S
80, Steering rack / box S 85. Pipes / hoses S 90. Tie bars / anti roll bars S
81. Chassis members = 86. Dampers (condition / leaks) S 91. Corrosion protection Yes
82. Power steering (operation) S 87. Gaiters S 92. Corrosion — floor/chassis No |
REAR SUSPENSION / UNDER FRAME

93, Springs/suspension bars S 97. Location rods/fixings N/A 101, Sub-frames/ mountings S
94. Anti roll bar S 98. Bump stops/gaiters S 102. Chassis members S
95. Dampers/bushes S 99. Wheel hubs/bearings S 103. Corrosion protection Yes
96. Suspension arms/fixings S 100. Pipes/hoses S 104. Corrosion — floor/chassis No
CLUTCH / TRANSMISSION MANUAL [] < AUTOMATIC

105. Fluid / oil leaks No 109. Casings S 113 Backlash S
106. Cables / adjustments N/A  110. Mountings S 114. Gaiters S !
107. Hydraulic system S 111. Drive shaft assembly S 115. Propshaft(s) / fittings N/A
108. Linkage (wear) S 112. Universal / sliding joints S 116. Bearings / supports N/A

Report No



EXHAUST SYSTEM

1 - t‘;L-zr‘ "_n|f-' ; Silencer(s) 5 123. System condition
{ ll,'\ :.; < 121. Heat shields / mountings

119. Catalytic converter (s) Joints / couplings !

FUEL SYSTEM

05 T ” Fuel lines 128. Evidence of leaks
e Talk Ring= Breather pipes

BRAKES

129. Master cylinder security S 132. Flexible hoses = 135. Handbrake op / adjustment

130. Fluid leaks No 133. Pipes / connections S 136. Handbrake mechanism

131. Servo / power system S 134. Discs / pads (if visible) S 137. Pedal and pad / linkage

Note - |f the vehicle is fitted with brake drums the internal parts including linings are not visible Brake fluid should be replaced at the
manufacturers specifed intervals

WHEELS AND TYRES Type: Alloy
s recommended tyres be replaced when the tread depth reaches 2mm. If uneven tyre wear s noted, this may indicate incorrec
1etry, which can result in excessive and rapid tyre wear. A full steering and geometry check is recommended

3. Wheel Rims S
Wheel Trims S
Tyres Make Size Type | Construction Min tread depth
Front RH llink 175/65/15 Radial 4 0mm S
Front LH llink 175/65/15 Radial B.5mm
Rear LH Arrowspeed 175/65/15 Radial 4.5mm
3. Rear RH Ilink 175/65/15 Radial 6.0mm

Sy DURIoD 125/70/16 Space saver type 3.5mm

5. ROAD TEST

The road test has been undertaken within the speed limits and prevailing traffic conditions in the locality of the inspection. If a road
test has not been carried out, please refer to the engineer's comments page

*I1f the vehicle is fitted with 4wd transmission then the systems have been checked for security, leakage and excessive noise
However. within the limitations of the road test the full functionality could not be checked

Test Distance 3 Miles Speed achieved up to 40 MPH

146. Final drive operation / 153, Instrument /controls function  No 160. Road holding / stability
Noise level :

147. Gearbox operation / 154. Steering wheel alignment S 161. General steering / handling
Noise level = :

148. Engine performance 155

149. Engine noise 166. Clutch operation ** 163. Hand/park brake operation

150. Excess smoke No 157. Cooling fan operation 164. Suspension noise o

151. Overheating evidence No 158. Steering effort S 165. Warning lights

152. Auto changes / kick-down N/A 159, Hot restarting S 166. Cruise control S

** |t should be carefully noted that the life expectancy of clutches is uncertain and difficult to predict, being dependant on owners

driving style, vehicle operation and terrain. The fact that the clutch has not been identified as faulty/slipping/juddering/noisy on the

report does not and should no be taken to imply that the clutch assembly will have a continuing life expectancy from the time of our

check. They can begin to slip at any time.

4\WD operation * 162. Footbrake operation

FINAL CHECK
167. Oil leaks

No 168. Coolant leaks No 169. Uneven tyre wear

Report No: 1




Vehicle doct
Iments an : :
Engineer Indicate with “X” as appiicnhl?_ Inspection environment notes.

Registration Document (V5):

f\__ No registration document ;
yourself th- i cument was seen with the vehicle and you are advised to satisfy
Corr.esﬂom?lhtjhflvemcrlff identification number and engine number (where quoted)
P those show it Warni ek
WITHOUT A V5. n on this report. Warning: DO NOT BUY ANY VEHICLE

I: The V5/Registration Document shows

Keeper on previous keeper(s), the last change of

Security:

57 T

. Ir / t \

X e Mas\er Key was not available. Please ensure this is supplied if the vehicle is
purchased

The engineer recommends that relevant spare and service keys be obtained prior 10
purchase

MOT:

Obtain hand books and radio codes for vehicle prior to purchase as these were not seen
in the vehicle

'___| As only a small amount of time is left on the MOT Certificate (less than 3 months) the
engineer recommends a full year's MOT be obtained prior {0 purchase

B4 A 12 Month MOT Certificate has been seen with the vehicle

Servicing:

j The service history seen, indicated that the last recorded service was carried out at miles
No immediate servicing is necessary. Next service is due as per manufacturers
recommendations or as per the Vehicles Service indicator

| | The service history seen, indicated that the last recorded service was carried out on

miles. Therefore the engineer would suggest a full service and brake ins ection to the
manufacturer recommendations prior to purchase which may reveal further defects not
apparent at this examination.

—

%] No service documentation seen with this vehicle and therefore the engineer would

 Tatl

recommend a full service and brake inspection to the manufacturer's recommendations prior to
purchase, which may reveal further defects not apparent at this examination

Inspection conditions notes:

[:] No vehicle hoist/ramp was available. A large trolley jack and stands were used

in order to carry out underside checks This limits the view of the underside
Some areas could not be fully seen. There may be further defects, which may
be visible given clear access and view

D The body/paintwork was wet/dirty/dusty this severely restricts inspection of the paintwork

Please note that there may be other defects present, which were not visible due to the
obscured paintwork, but which may become visible once dry and clean

ot

Report No: 1041

0]




Engineers Comments

he = il . /
T;’L_, vletlwln:le is considered overall to be a fair and reasonable example of the type, being in &
/ i | |
generally reasonable condition and generally considered to be consistent with the type for the
age and indicated recorded mileage in most areas

The |Fem5_I|sFed as "could not be checked" (---) normally indicate items were obscured by
covers/shields or other equipment

The Water pump — Engine drive belt/chain - these items could not been fully examined, as
covers, trims and other equipment obscure them

The cooling system was pressure tested to 0.7 bars, no pressure loss was noted on the system
or pressure cap. The antifreeze concentration was acceptable, but has deteriorated from its
original strength and at the next routine service may need to be refreshed/replaced. Itis advised
that the coolant strength be checked again at the next routine service. Antifreeze only has a 2/3-
year life and requires its strength adjusting after this time or replacing as per manufacturers
specifications

The vehicle is fitted with vented front brake disc and pads, supported at the rear by @ single
arrangement. Although the visible brakes only show some signs of general serviceable wear,
some deterioration is noted, which will need attention in the near future. Itis strongly advised to
remove all road wheels and examine the inner brake components, which are obscured on this
vehicle prior to purchase, replacing any worn or badly corroded parts. Itis probable that the
front brakes at least, will need to be replaced at the next routine service.

The steering & suspension has been assessed to MOT standard. This allows for a degree of
wear and deterioration of components without rendering them unserviceable. The extent of wear
is not considered excessive at this juncture and unlikely to attract MOT failure

The road test distance and or top speed was limited due to the general area/inspection location,
and/or traffic levels and/or adverse weather conditions and/or lack of fuel when the vehicle was
tested and driven. Comment cannot be made in these instances in relation to possible "high
speed” or “sustained speed,” related driving defects. which may become apparent at a later
stage after any purchase due to these limiting conditions.

Report No: 10410

Page



/

Essential Repairs

It is strongly advised t}
1at the es (F
L chate the essential defects are Investigated and rectified
stige E: ectified prior to

Comment

Additional Comments

NONE. '

Report No: 10410



Advisable Repairs

Please noie at ti dvisal e ite AV D = - 15 rec
note that ea ab t t 3
ole i ms me Y prove cos |Y o ""pci and must be cor 1 1
- 2 C sidere

Item Comment = —_— —=

Report No: 10410

PLEASE READ CAREFULLY
s You are strongly advised to discuss the findings of this report with the vendor prior to

making your decision to purchase the vehicle.
« Essential repairs should be investigated and rectified prior to purchase. These may be

costly.
« Advisable repairs may prove costly to repair and must be considered prior to purchase

Engineers Name  David Pearson
Qualifications IMI Accredited Technician

A Authorised Examiner
DVSA Approved MOT Tester

. oate D0/ 257.

Si




This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX E

Photographs of Vehicle

Page 31



Right side — minor scratch and mark

Page 32



Back front and left side no marks or dents

Page 33



Inside back very clean front passenger seat minor damage to cover

Page 34



By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 45



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 53



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 57



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 5

Not for publication

REPORT TO LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE

Date of Hearing: 28™ August 2025
Report of: Service Lead - Head of Environment and Waste
Decision Required: To determine if the Licensed Driver is fit and proper to

hold a taxi drivers licence in accordance with the
relevant Legislation.

Legislation: Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976
Town Police Clauses Act 1847

Licensed Driver: L

1. WHAT IS THE REPORT ABOUT?

1.1 To determine whether the Licensed Driver is a fit and proper person to hold a
taxi drivers’ licence.

2. BACKGROUND

2.1 The Licensed Driver _who has held a licence with the Council
since 6" December 2016 contacted the Licensing Authority on 5" May 2025 to
report a conviction he had received after being arrested on 20" October 2024.

2.2 The Licensing Team have confirmation that on 5" of February 2025_
was convicted of Battery under section 39 of the Criminal Justice Act 1988.

2.3 Documents relating to the offence have been received from the Licensed Driver
and are attached as appendices A-E.

3. WHAT ARE THE LEGAL ASPECTS?

3.1 Under Section 61 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act
1976 (‘the Act’) a district council may suspend or revoke or (on application
therefore under section 46 of the Town Police Clauses Act 1847 (‘Act of 1847’)
or section 51 of this Act, as the case may be) refuse to renew the licence of a
driver of a hackney carriage or private hire vehicle on any of the following
grounds:

(a) that he has since the grant of the licence—

(i) been convicted of an offence involving dishonesty, indecency or
violence; or

(i) been convicted of an offence under or has failed to comply with the
provisions of the Act of 1847 or of this Part of this Act.

Page 61



3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

4,

(a) that he has since the grant of the licence been convicted of an
immigration offence or required to pay an immigration penalty; or

(b) any other reasonable cause.

The evidential burden is not on the Licensed Driver to prove he is a fit and
proper person but for the Licensing Sub-Committee to be satisfied on the
balance of probabilities that the Licensed Driver is no longer a fit and proper
person.

The Licensing Sub-Committee may suspend or revoke a taxi driver’s licence
where they are not satisfied that the licence holder is a fit and proper person
to drive a taxi.

If the Licensed Driver is suspended the suspension period is determined by
the Licensing Sub-Committee as they determine appropriate based on the
circumstances of the case. The Licensing Sub-Committee may require the
Licensed Driver to complete specified training.

If the Licensed Driver’s licence is suspended or revoked the suspension or
revocation shall commence at the end of the period of 21 days beginning with
the day in which the Licensed Driver has received written notice of the
Licensing Sub-Committee decision, unless there is an immediate need to
protect the public in which case the suspension or revocation will have
immediate effect.

The Licensing Sub-Committee must have regard to the Statutory taxi and
private hire standards updated on 25" November 2022 and issued by the
Secretary of State for Transport under section 177(1) of the Policing and
Crime Act 2017(‘Statutory Guidance’)

The Statutory Guidance provides information on the fit and proper test at
Paragraph 5.4 states:

‘Licensing authorities have a duty to ensure that any person to whom they
grant a taxi or private hire vehicle driver’s licence is a fit and proper person to
be a licensee. It may be helpful when considering whether an applicant or
licensee is fit and proper to pose oneself the following question:

Without any prejudice, and based on the information before you, would you
allow a person for whom you care, regardless of their condition, to travel
alone in a vehicle driven by this person at any time of day or night?

If, on the balance of probabilities, the answer to the question is no, the

individual should not hold a licence.’

The Licensing Sub-Committee may impose penalty points in accordance with
the Council’s Taxi Policy which is explained further below.

WHAT ARE THE POLICY ASPECTS?

Page 62



4.1  The Licensing Sub-Committee must have regard to the Council’s the
Practices and Procedures for the control of Hackney Carriage and Private
Hire Vehicles, Drivers and Operators and the Code of Conduct for Licensed
Drivers (‘Taxi Policy’).

4.2  The Licensing Sub-Committee must satisfy itself that all Licensed Drivers are
Fit and Proper persons to hold a Drivers Licence. In so doing, it will have
regard to all relevant factors such as convictions, cautions, warnings and
reprimands including those that are "spent Convictions" under the
Rehabilitation of Offenders Act 1974.

4.3  The Convictions are categorised by the Taxi Policy in Appendix G2 as a
serious offence, where refusal or revocation will be recommended within 5
years of the date of conviction or expiry of any custodial sentence imposed
whichever is the later date, in accordance with Appendix E para-E.6.

4.4 The conviction is dated 5th February 2025. The relevant date for policy
purposes is 5" February 2030 (five years from date of conviction).
The Taxi Policy does state that there may be occasions where it is
appropriate to depart from these guidelines when considering whether a
driver is fit and proper. For example, where the offence is a ‘one-off and there
are mitigating circumstances or alternatively where there are many or
continuous offences which may show a pattern of offending and unfitness.

4.4 In July 2023, the Council adopted a points based disciplinary system which
officers and the Licensing Sub-Committee may apply to licensed drivers. A
copy is attached as Appendix F to this report.

Relevant to this report, the following can be considered.

Details of Misconduct Points applicable
46 - Unsatisfactory behaviour or conduct of a driver 1-12

47 - Failure to notify the Council in writing, of any 6

motoring or criminal convictions within 21 days or

conviction or cautions during period of current licence

4.5 When issued, the penalty points will remain ‘live’ for a rolling period of 36
months from the date they were imposed.

4.6 If 12 penalty points are imposed on an individual licence in any one 36-month

rolling period, the driver will appear in front of the Licensing Sub-Committee
where appropriate action will be taken in accordance with the Taxi Policy.

5. OPTIONS

5.1 The Licensing Authority would make the following recommendations:

The Licensing Sub-Committee may find either:

Page 63



i) That the Licensed Driver is a fit and proper person to hold a taxi
driver’s licence and the licence should remain in place; or

i)  That the Licensed Driver is a fit and proper person to hold a taxi
drivers licence and the licence should remain in place but a written
warning shall be issued by the Chair of the Licensing Sub Committee
with regard to future conduct; or

iy  That the Licensed Driver is a fit and proper person to hold a taxi
drivers licence and the licence should remain in place but a written
warning with regard to future conduct together with the issue of
penalty points from the Chair of the Licensing-Sub-Committee; or

iv)  That the Licensed Driver is not a fit and proper person to hold a taxi
driver’s licence but that the licence should remain in place subject to a
period of suspension so as to deter any future misconduct. In addition,
penalty points may be issued by the Chair of the Licensing Sub
Committee; or

v)  That the Licensed Driver is not a fit and proper person to hold a taxi
driver’s licence but that the licence should remain in place subject to a
period of suspension until such time as the Licensed Driver has
completed appropriate training. In addition, penalty points may be
issued by the Chair of the Licensing Sub Committee; or

vi)  That the Licensed Driver is not a fit and proper person to hold a taxi
driver’s licence and should have his licence revoked.

Where the Licensing Sub-Committee determine that the Licensed Driver is not a
fit and proper person to hold a driver’s licence and there is a need to provide
immediate protection to the public the licence will be suspended or revoked with
immediate effect.

6. RECOMMENDED

6.1 It is recommended that the Licensing Sub-Committee determine whether or
not the Licensed Driver is a fit and proper person to hold a taxi driver’s
licence, having regard to the Licensed Drivers’ representations and all other
relevant information submitted together with the Taxi Policy.

Simon Lane Head of Service Environment and Waste

Author:Julie Bennett

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 (as amended)
Background papers used in compiling this report: None.

Page 64



APPENDIX A

Page 65



Pl AN North and East Devon Magistrates' Court
SNGAI T Code 1300
Sitting at Exeter Magistrates' Court

Note

You live within the area of the North and East Devon Magistrates' Court.

Either you or your responsible officer can ask the court to look again at this order. .The court can
then change it or cancel it if it feels that is the right thing to do. If you wish to do this, you should

get in touch with your responsible officer.

Case reference: _

Offence 2

On or in 20 Oct 2024 at | -ss=uitcd [N by be2ting I

Contrary to section 39 of the Criminal Justice Act1988.

ANDY RAHIMI Page 2 of 2

Page 66




APPENDIX B

Page 67



1095386001/06615 [1/1)

North and East Devon Magistrates' Court
Code 1300

Sitting at Exeter Magistrates’ Court

1785_1095386001 06615 1070 Case reference
Defendant
Date of birth O

Community Order
Date of order 28 April 2025

The court makes a community order containing the requirements listed below. You must have
complied with all the requirements by 27 October 2025 unless the requirement specifies a

shorter period or date.

Requirements

Unpaid work. Requirement to be completed within 12 months.
Number of hours: 180 Hours

Rehabilitation activity
Offender to comply with any instructions of the responsible officer to attend appointments (with

the responsible officer or someone else nominated by them), or to participate in any activity as
required by the responsible officer up to a maximum of: 30 Days

Responsible Officer

The Responsible Officer for this order will be an officer of a provider of probation services. You

must:
* keep in touch with your responsible officer as that officer tells you

* ask permission from your responsible officer or the court before you change address

T —— — e ——————————————————— e —

Warning

If you do not comply with this order, you will be brought back to court. The court may then:

* change the order by adding extra requirements
* _pass a different sentence for the original offences, including a custodial sentence.

—
e ——— e ——————

Page 68

- e ——— O —  —— g, g —




Probation
Service

ADNRESSEE ONI V Brittany House,

New North Road,
Exeter,
EX4 4EP

Tel: 01392 715700

30/04/2025

SA2020 Community Order — STARTING BLOCKS ALL DAY INDUCTION APPOINTMENT

In order to be able to start your Unpaid Work hours, you will need to attend an Induction Session
so that we can explain all about Unpaid Work and you will have the opportunity to ask questions
so that you fully understand what you need to do.

You are instructed to attend a Starting Blocks induction session on

DAY: Saturday

DATE: 17/05/2025

START TIME: 08:00

END TIME: 15:00

MEETING AT: Brittany House, New North Road, Exeter, EX4 4EP

Please note that this session is mandatory, and you will be unable to complete any of your hours
if you fail to attend. In addition, all failures to attend will be strictly enforced and a warning letter
will be issued. (Two warning letters will result in formal breach action and your Probation
Practitioner will be able to explain to you what this could mean in your particular circumstances).

The Induction day will consist of a Group Health and Safety Presentation giving you an

Introduction to the aims of Community Payback, an Individual meeting with a Placement
Coordinator to discuss your ongoing Unpaid Work Instructions and end with your First Session

of Unpaid Work.

So that we can get you onto your first work session, we need you to come dressed in suitable
clothing and footwear as outlined as followed.

You will also need to do the following:

Page 69




=3
Probation ™ mm
Service [

1. Bring a packed lunch, non-alcoholic drinks and be self-sufficient for the day as you will not
be able to visit a shop during this session. Please be aware that not all Unpaid Work
placements have cooking facilities available so please ensure you lunch does not require
the use of any cooking appliances.

2. Please attend your Unpaid Work placement dressed suitably for the weather conditions
and work of a manual nature. Shorts, sleeveless t-shirts or flip-flop type shoes will not be
suitable for you to be able to complete your First Wark Session.

3. Smoking and/or vaping is not permitted in the workplace or in the vehicle, sufficient
breaks will be available during your working day as agreed with your Unpaid Work
Supervisor.

Included with this letter is a copy of the Unpaid Work Information Leaflet which it is important for
you to read to familiarise yourself with the expectations of your Unpaid Work requirement.

If you are in any doubt or have any problems which may affect your ability to complete your
Unpaid Work requirement, please contact you Probation Practitioner for advice and to discuss
your situation.

We look forward to seeing you at your first session and we will work with you so that that you get
the most benefit out of your sentence as well as providing community payback.

Yours sincerely

Community Payback Team

Page 70



APPENDIX C

Page 71



m Probation
HM Prison & Service

Probation Service

Date issued: Monday, 28 April 2025

You have recently been sentenced to a Community Order

You are required to attend an Induction Appointment as follows:

With Probation Practitioner | on Wednesday, 30t April
2025 at 13h00 at the National Probation offices at Brittany House, New North

Road, Exeter, EX4 4EP for your initial Induction appointment.

You must attend on time for your appointment. You must notify the Probation Office in advance of

your appointment if you are unable to attend and you will be required to provide evidence of a

reasonable excuse.

If you don’t contact us and we are unaware of the reason for your absence, you may be in breach of

your Order. Please note children are not permitted in our offices under any circumstances.
Please ensure you provide details of your up-to-date phone number and address at your first
appointment. You will need to be contactable for the duration of your sentence.

We look forward to working with you.

Signed in receipt. ....

Print name: -

Date signed: .....coci..ni 2% ’—GH-(ZO 2 S

If you have any questions or concerns, please do not hesitate to contact us on:

Exeter Brittany House Offices - 01392 715700

Page 72



APPENDIXD

Page 73



Probation
Service

ADDRESSEE ONLY Brittany House,

New North Road,
Exeter,
EX4 4EP

Tel: 01392 715700

30/04/2025

SA2020 Community Order — STARTING BLOCKS ALL DAY INDUCTION APPOINTMENT

In order to be able to start your Unpaid Work hours, you will need to attend an Induction Session
so that we can explain all about Unpaid Work and you will have the opportunity to ask questions
so that you fully understand what you need to do.

You are instructed to attend a Starting Blocks induction session on

DAY: Saturday
DATE: 17/05/2025
START TIME: 09:00 |

END TIME: 15:00 |
MEETING AT: Brittany House, New North Road, Exeter, EX4 4EP

Please note that this session is mandatory, and you will be unable to complete any of your hours
if you fail to attend. In addition, all failures to attend will be strictly enforced and a warning letter
will be issued. (Two warning letters will result in formal breach action and your Probation
Practitioner will be able to explain to you what this could mean in your particular circumstances).

The Induction day will consist of a Group Health and Safety Presentation giving you an
Introduction to the aims of Community Payback, an Individual meeting with a Placement
Coordinator to discuss your ongoing Unpaid Work Instructions and end with your First Session

of Unpaid Work.

So that we can get you onto your first work session, we need you to come dressed in suitable
clothing and footwear as outlined as followed.

You will also need to do the following:

Page 74



-
Probation ™ mm
Service ™ mm

1. Bring a packed lunch, non-alcoholic drinks and be self-sufficient for the day as you will not
be able to visit a shop during this session. Please be aware that not all Unpaid Work
placements have cooking facilities available so please ensure you lunch does not require

the use of any cooking appliances.

2. Please attend your Unpaid Work placement dressed suitably for the weather conditions
and work of a manual nature. Shorts. sleeveless t-shirts or flip-flop type shoes will not be

suitable for you to be able to complete your First Work Session.

3. Smoking and/or vaping is not permitted in the workplace or in the vehicle, sufficient
breaks will be available during your working day as agreed with your Unpaid Work

Supervisor.

Included with this letter is a copy of the Unpaid Work Information Leaflet which it is important for
you to read to familiarise yourself with the expectations of your Unpaid Work requirement.

If you are in any doubt or have any problems which may affect your ability to complete your
Unpaid Work requirement, please contact you Probation Practitioner for advice and to discuss

your situation.

We look forward to seeing you at your first session and we will work with you so that that you get
the most benefit out of your sentence as well as providing community payback.

Yours sincerely

Community Payback Team




This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIXE

Page 77



STRICTLY PRIVATE AND CONFIDENTIAL

Enhanced Certificate &

Disclosure &

Page | of 2 Barring Service

DBS Fee Charged Certificate Number _

29 JULY 2025

Date of Issue:

Applicant Personal Details Employment Details

Sumame:

- Position applied for:
OTHER WORKFORCE TAXI DRIVER
Forename(s -
Name of Employer:

Other Names: - NONE DECLARED EXETER CITY COUNCIL

Date of Birth: _ Countersignatory Details

Place of Birth: ~ KAHUR MALESTAN GHASNI AFGHANISTAN Registered Person/Body:

FIRST ADVANTAGE EUROPE LTD (NOTTINGHAM)

Gender; MALE
Countersignatory:.
ALEKSANDRA ZVYERYEVA
Police Records of Convictions, Cautions, Reprimands and Warnings
Sumname: Last known occupation:
I TAXI DRIVER

Alias Name(s):

Forename(s):

(ender:

Alias Date of Birth:

MALE NONE RECORDED
Birth Detalils:
Conviction Details
Conviction: Date of Conviction; Court;
1 05 FEBRUARY 2025 NORTH AND EAST DEVON'MAGISTRATES
I
Offence: Disposal:
1 BATTERY COMMUNITY ORDER 27/10/25
ON 20 OCTOBER 2024 COSTS 85,00
CRIMINAL JUSTICE ACT 1988 S, 39 UNPAID WORK REQUIREMENT

VICTIM SURCHARGE 114.00
REHABILITATION ACTIVITY REQUIREMENT

— —— § o —— - " - - - —

— - ———— —  — . 5 — — —— e — . —— —
- . P —— . e et P
- — e —

Information from the list hcld under S(*(lmn I-t’ of the E du(nlmn A(( ’UUZ

NONE RECORDED

o —

e — - e — — s P Wt - - PO —. -
e e = —— - — — —
- — —— - - ——

DBS Children's Barred l 15t mfmnmlmn

NONE RECORDED

%

-
~r

QOLOLOOELE00OLSI LE

THIS CERTIFICATE IS NOT EVIDENCE OF IDENTITY Continued on page 2

DBS Disclosure and Barring Service, PO Box 165, Liverpool, L69 3D Helpline: 03000 200 190

Page 78

vy Crewn Copyrigh



Details of the Misconduct Points Driver Vehicle
Applicable Owner or
Operator

1 Providing false or misleading information on 6 v v
licence application form / failing to provide
relevant information or pay the relevant fee

2 Failure to notify, in writing, the Council of a 3 4 v
change of address within 7 calendar days

3 Refusal to accept hiring without reasonable 6 v
cause

4 Unreasonable prolongation of journeys or any 6 v
misconduct regarding the charging of fares

5 Plying for hire by Private hire drivers or Hackney 9 v v
Carriage drivers plying for hire outside the
district

6 Private hire vehicle parking or waiting on a taxi 9 v v
rank

7 Inappropriate behaviour at a taxi rank 1-12 v

8 Leaving a taxi unattended at a rank 4 v

9 Using unlicensed vehicle or using a licensed 12 v v
vehicle without insurance or without a valid
MOT

10 | Failure to produce relevant documents within 4 v 4
timescales when requested by an Authorised
Officer

11 | Unsatisfactory condition of vehicle, interior or 4 v v
exterior

12 | Failure to undergo the MOT on time 6 v

13 Failure to provide proof of insurance cover 6 v
when requested

14 | Failure to produce Hackney Carriage or Private 4 v
Hire vehicle for testing when required

15 | Using a vehicle subject to a suspension order 12 v v
issued by an Authorised Officer or a police
officer

16 | Using a vehicle for which the licence has been 12 v v
suspended or revoked

17 | Failure to report, in writing, within 72 hours, 4 v v
accident or damage to licensed vehicle, which
would cause the vehicle to breach licence
conditions

18 | Carrying more passengers than stated on the 6 v
vehicle licence

19 | Failure to display external/internal licence plate 6 v v
in a fixed position or failure to display
appropriate door signs

20 | Carrying an offensive weapon in the vehicle 12 v

21 | Failure to notify a transfer of Private Hire or 4 v
Hackney Carriage vehicle licence within 14 days
of transfer

22 | Failure to carry fire extinguisher 4 v

Page 79




Details of the Misconduct Points Driver Vehicle
Applicable Owner or
Operator

23 | Failure to carry first aid kit 3 v

24 | Displaying unsuitable or inappropriate sited 3 v
signs or unauthorised advertisements in or on
the vehicle

25 | Failure to use authorised roof light 4 v

26 | Failure to maintain records in a suitable form of 4 v
the commence and cessation of work of each
driver each day

27 | Failure to produce on request records of 4 v
drivers’ work activity

28 | Using a non-approved or non-calibrated 6 v v
taximeter

29 | Obstruction of an authorised officer or police 12 v v
officer wishing to examine a licensed vehicle

30 | Evidence of smoking in vehicle 3 v v

31 | Eating whilst a passenger is in the vehicle 3 v v

32 | Displaying any feature on private hire vehicle 6 v
that may suggest that it is a Hackney Carriage

33 | Using a vehicle, the appearance of which 6 v
suggests that it is a Taxi

34 | Failure to carry an assistance dog without 12 v v
requisite medical exemption certificate

35 | Driver not holding a current DVLA licence 12 v v

36 | Failure to have the driver’s badge clearly 4 v
displayed

37 | Failure to notify, in writing, a change in medical 6 v
circumstances

38 | Unsatisfactory appearance of driver 4 v

39 | Failure to observe rank discipline 3 v

40 Failure to maintain proper records of private 3 v
hire vehicles

41 | Failure to keep or produce records of Private 6 v
Hire bookings or other documents required to
be kept or produced

42 Misleading use of the words ‘Taxi’ or ‘Cab’ on 3 v
advertising materials

43 | Failure to issue receipt on request 6 v v

44 | Using a licensed vehicle in a dangerous 9 v v
condition

45 | Failure to return vehicle licence plate within 7 4 v
days after due notice following expiry,
revocation or suspensions of such licence

46 | Unsatisfactory behaviour or conduct of a driver 1-12 v

47 | Failure to notify the Council in writing, of any 6 v v

motoring or criminal convictions within 21 days
or conviction or cautions during period of
current licence

Page 80




Details of the Misconduct Points Driver Vehicle
Applicable Owner or
Operator

48 Failure to behave in a civil and orderly manner, 1-12 4 v
or bringing the trade into disrepute

49 | Failure to provide reasonable assistance to a 1-12 v v
passenger

50 | Carrying two or more separate fares without 9 v v
the appropriate consent

51 | Failure to display a correct up to date fare card 3 v v

52 | Failure to carry a legal spare wheel (or 4 v v
appropriate alternative) and the necessary tools
to fit the spare wheel

53 | Failure to attend punctually at appointed time 4 v v
and place without sufficient cause

54 | Alicensed vehicle with a bald or dangerous or 4 v v
defective tyre (4 points per tyre)

55 | Failure to submit licence renewal application 6 v v
including documents and attendance at a
vehicle inspection

56 | Failure to display an applicable fare card AND 3 v v
the Councils valid fare card together

57 | Waiting or stopping on a double yellow area, 3 v
bus stop or private land (without the owner’s
permission) unless requested by a paying
customer present in the vehicle

58 | Driving whilst using a mobile phone 12 v

*- discretionary points up to a maximum of 6 points can be issued by officers, but greater awards of
points can only be issued by the Licensing Panel.

Officers may refer any mandatory award of points to Members where there are aggravating features
to any case.

Ticks indicate potential recipients of points for infringements, but are not limited to those only.
Certain cases may result in drivers and/or proprietors and/or operators receiving penalty points.
Points may be awarded to one or several persons depending upon the circumstances of the case,
but each case will be considered on its individual merits.

Page 81




This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 83



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 87



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 89



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 93



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 95



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 99



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 101



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 6

Not for publication

REPORT TO LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE

Date of Hearing: 28.08.2025

Report of: Nigel Marston

Decision Required: To determine if the Applicant is fit and proper to hold a
taxi drivers licence in accordance with the relevant
Legislation.

Legislation: Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976
Town Police Clauses Act 1847

Applicant: I

1. WHAT IS THE REPORT ABOUT?

1.1 To determine whether the Applicant is a fit and proper person to hold a taxi
drivers licence.

2. BACKGROUND

2.1 The Applicant submitted an application attached at Appendix A for the
renewal of a combined Hackney Carriage/Private Hire drivers’ licence on the
10 June 2025.

2.2  The Applicant has been a combined driver licence holder with Exeter City
Council licensed as HD023 since 11 December 2013.

2.3 Inresponse to the question do you have any convictions, cautions or
reprimands? the Applicant has answered No.

2.4  The renewal application form, completed by the Applicant, sets out the
following statutory declaration:

INFORMATION DISCLOSED ON THIS FORM MAY BE REVEALED TO
OTHER AGENCIES AND BODIES FOR THE SOLE PURPOSE OF
PREVENTING OR DETECTING CRIMES

Your attention is drawn to the following:

Your application for the renewal of a Hackney Carriage or Private Hire Drivers
Licence may be subject to a Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS) check. You
are advised that applications for renewal of licences may not be successful
where convictions or cautions are declared or subsequently disclosed.

Where convictions or cautions arising during the life of your licence are
declared, the Council’s Licensing Committee will consider any written
representations made by you indicating why you should be considered a fit and
proper person to hold a licence and why your licence should be allowed to be
renewed. In cases where convictions or cautions are revealed during the period
of the licence, the licence may be suspended or revoked.

Page 105



2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

2.9

2.10

2.1

212

3.

3.1

| understand that omissions or incorrect statements will render the Licence, if
granted, liable to suspension or revocation and | may be liable to prosecution in
a criminal court. | have been given a copy of the conditions appertaining to
Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Drivers Licences. | have read or had them
explained to me and understand them.

| hereby certify that to the best of my knowledge and belief, the answers | have
given are true. | confirm that this signature authorises Exeter City Council to
share my data with appropriate authorities and undertake appropriate checks
for the period of the licence.

Officers attempted to undertake a DBS update check. This was not possible
as the Applicant had failed to maintain his subscription to the update service
despite this being a requirement of Exeter City Council.

The Applicant was therefore required to complete a new DBS check.

On 17.07.2025 the applicant was issued with a new Disclosure and Barring
Service Certificate number 001932626585 which listed a Caution on 14 June
2010 by Devon and Cornwall Police for the Offence of Affray on 20 May 2010
under Section 3 of the Public Order Act 1986. A copy of the DBS is attached
at Appendix B

At no point did the Applicant declare his previous conviction to the licensing
case officer.

The Applicants previous application was checked, and it is noted on the
Uniform case record that he did not declare the caution and was given a
warning by the case officer.

The Applicant confirmed that he understood that he must declare the caution
on future applications. A copy of the notes made on the Applicants record is
attached as Appendix C.

Four separate complaints supported by photographic evidence were received
in relation to the Applicant parking his licenced Hackney Carriage vehicle in a
restricted area near a school. The dates of the offences were as follows: 31
January 2025, 5 February 2025, 6 February 2025 and 13 February 2025

On 03.03.2025 the applicant was sent a letter informing him that he had been
issued with 12 penalty points for non-compliance with traffic regulations and
that these points remain live on his record with Exeter City Council for a
period of 3 years and that if he gained any further points within this period
then he would have to appear before a licensing sub-committee. He was
provided with the email address for the Licensing Team if he wished to appeal
the issue of the points and a time frame of ten working days and no appeal
was made. A copy of the points letter issued to the Applicant is attached as
Appendix D.

WHAT ARE THE LEGAL ASPECTS?

Under Section 61 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act
1976 (‘the Act’) a district council may suspend or revoke or (on application
therefore under section 46 of the Town Police Clauses Act 1847 (‘Act of 1847’)
or section 51 of this Act, as the case may be) refuse to renew the licence of a
driver of a hackney carriage or private hire vehicle on any of the following
grounds:

(a) that he has since the grant of the licence—

Page 106



3.2

3.3

3.4

4.

4.1

4.2

4.3

(i) been convicted of an offence involving dishonesty, indecency or
violence; or

(ii) been convicted of an offence under or has failed to comply with the
provisions of the Act of 1847 or of this Part of this Act;

(a) that he has since the grant of the licence been convicted of an
immigration offence or required to pay an immigration penalty; or

(b) any other reasonable cause.

The evidential burden is not on the Applicant to prove he is a fit and proper
person but for the Licensing Sub-Committee to be satisfied on the balance of
probabilities that the Applicant is no longer a fit and proper person.

The Licensing Sub-Committee must have regard to the Statutory taxi and
private hire standards updated on 25" November 2022 and issued by the
Secretary of State for Transport under section 177(1) of the Policing and
Crime Act 2017(‘Statutory Guidance’).

The Statutory Guidance provides information on the fit and proper test at
Paragraph 5.4 states:

‘Licensing authorities have a duty to ensure that any person to whom they
grant a taxi or private hire vehicle driver’s licence is a fit and proper person to
be a licensee. It may be helpful when considering whether an applicant or
licensee is fit and proper to pose oneself the following question:

Without any prejudice, and based on the information before you, would you
allow a person for whom you care, regardless of their condition, to travel
alone in a vehicle driven by this person at any time of day or night?

If, on the balance of probabilities, the answer to the question is no, the
individual should not hold a licence.’

WHAT ARE THE POLICY ASPECTS?

The Licensing Sub-Committee must have regard to the Council’s the
Practices and Procedures for the control of Hackney Carriage and Private
Hire Vehicles, Drivers and Operators and the Code of Conduct for Licensed
Drivers (‘Taxi Policy’).

The Licensing Sub-Committee must satisfy itself that all Licensed Drivers are
Fit and Proper persons to hold a Drivers Licence. In so doing, it will have
regard to all relevant factors such as convictions, cautions, warnings and
reprimands including those that are "spent Convictions" under the
Rehabilitation of Offenders Act 1974.

At E 6.4 Drivers maintain close contact with the public and for this reason
where a driver has a conviction for offences involving violence the
recommendation to the Licensing Sub-Committee will be to refuse the
application for or revoke a licence within 5 years from the date of conviction,
or the end of any custodial sentence imposed or where there are two or more
offences in any period involving violence.

Page 107



4.4  Dishonesty and deception are also offences that would merit a refusal within
5 years of a conviction. Despite being made aware of the need to declare
convictions, cautions or reprimands in 2022, the Applicant has failed to
declare the caution and has made a false statutory declaration on the
application form.

5. OPTIONS
5.1 The Licensing Authority would make the following recommendations:
The Licensing Sub-Committee may find either:

i) That the Applicant is a fit and proper person to hold a taxi driver’s
licence and the licence should be renewed; or

ii) That the Applicant is a fit and proper person to hold a taxi drivers
licence and the licence should be renewed but a written warning shall
be issued by the Chair of the Licensing Sub Committee with regard to
future conduct; or

iy  That the Applicant is not a fit and proper person to hold a taxi driver’s
licence and the licence should not be renewed.

6. RECOMMENDED

6.1 Itis recommended that the Licensing Sub-Committee determine whether or
not the Applicant is a fit and proper person to hold a taxi driver’s licence,
having regard to the Applicants’ representations and all other relevant
information submitted together with the Taxi Policy.

Simon Lane — Head of Service Environment and Waste

Author:Nigel J Marston

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 (as amended)
Background papers used in compiling this report: None.

Page 108



Hawe you ever received an Anti-Sccial Behaviour Order, and Anti-Saocial YES I N
Behaviour Injunction or a Criminal Behaviour Order? 1

Do you have any impending prosecutions? YES ] NO

If you have answered YES to any of the above questions, please enter the details below:

Date Court Offence Result

INFORMATION DISCLOSED ON THIS FORM MAY BE REVEALED TO OTHER AGEMCIES AND
BODIES FOR THE SOLE PURPOSE OF PREVENTING OR DETECTING CRIMES

Your attention is drawn to the following:

Your application for the renewal of a Hackney Carriage or Private Hire Drivers Licence may be subject to a
Dizclosure and Barring Service (DES) check. You are advised that applications for renewal of licences may not
be successiul where convictions or cautions are declared or subsequently disclosed.

Where comvictions or cautions arising during the life of your licence are declared, the Council's Licensing
Committee will congider any written representalions made by you indicating why yvou should be considered a fit
and proper person to hold a licence and why your licence should be allowed 1o be renewed. [N cases whera
convictions or cautions are revealed during the pariod of the licence, the licence may be suspended or revoked.

| understand that omissions or incorrect statements will render the Licence, if granted, liable to suspension or
revocation and | may be liable to prosecution in a criminal court. | have been given a copy of the conditions
appertaining to Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Drvers Licences. | have read or had them explained to me
and understand them.

| hereby cerify that to the best of my knowledge and belief, the answers | have given are true. | confirm that this
signature authorises Exeter City Councll to share my data with appropriate authorities and undertake appropriate
chicks for the period of the licence.

conee 10/6/202%

Office use only

' Medical checked (where applicable) YES | NO
Date of medical with GP:
Date checked by officer: SIGNED (officer)

Page 109



2L Exeter

City Council

APPLICATION TO RENMEW THE LICENCE TO DRIVE
A HACKNEY CARRIAGE AND/OR PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLE

(Some details on this form are pre-filled from our records = if any of these details are incorrect, please use
the blank space provided fo give the correct details)

Applicant name

Addross: .
Tolaphone emar: |

TI-:EI of licence Combined Driver | Licence Number: -

Licence expiry date: 9 July 2025

Which operator do you
intend working for?

‘Which licenced vehicle
do you intend to drive?

HMRC Tax code:
Right to Work code:

DBS Certificate
number:

ROAD TRAFFIC ACT DRIVING LICENCE

Number: Date of issue: | Expiry date:
Since your last issue of a licence have you developed any physical or mental YES NO
conditions which have been advised to DVLC Swansea? [ ,

If YES, what are they?

Do you have any convictions, cautions, reprimands or warnings? YES NO I

Hawve you been subject to a fixed penalty notice or given a penalty notice for YES NO J
disorder by the Police? [ [

Page 110



Page 111




Page 112



ly conviction or other d

records, and

| within 3 month

he Sourt

Services:

nformation




This page is intentionally left blank



CNFCAPPNOQTES.104 Case Notes: 22/00754/LCD X

NIMAR - Nigel Marston ~| 03032025
NIMAR - Nigel Marston v

NIMAR - Nigel Marston v] 03.03.2025

VICKYL - Vickv Limb V| 11.07.2022
VICKYL - Vicky Limb v| 15.07.2022
NIMAR - Nigel Marston v 03.03.2025

he has said he has no convictions. His DBS shows one. Waiting to hear if we proceeed with this application. send letter regarding dishonesty

( CNFCAPPNOTES.104 Case Notes: 22/00754/LCD X

Dishanest on application form
elephone call VICKYL - Vicky Limb v
Complaint Parking 05.0225
Complaint -parking 31.01.25 NIMAR - Nigel Marston V| 03032025
Complaint Parking 06.02.25 03032025
Complaint Parking 13.02.25 NIMAR - Nigel Marston V| 03032025

Spoke with - eagrding his false statement on his application form. ADdvised him will recieve a warning letter and that he must always say yes to the
question regarding convictions efc. He said he understood and would keep the letter as a reference. he also said this has never been raised with previous

renewals and that a receptionist told him he didnt have to say yes as it was so long ago. | explained he should always contact licensing to ask about licensing
issues,

Page 115



This page is intentionally left blank



5 Exeter

City Council

Please ask for: Licensing

Direct Dial: 01392 265702
Email: licensing.team@exeter.gov.uk
Our ref: 25/0004/L.CD
Your ref: -
By e-mail
Date: 03.03.2025

oear [

Penalty Points for Non-Compliance with Traffic Regulations

On the 315 January, 5" February, 6" February and 13" February your vehicle was observed
parked on a no waiting and no loading restricted area outside of Ladysmith School.

It is not acceptable as a professional driver to park in contravention of road traffic signage. |
am therefore awarding you penalty points under the agreed Exeter City Council Penalty
Points Scheme.

For each offence you are awarded 3 points. This gives you a total of 12 points.

These points will remain live on your Exeter City Council record for 3 years. Should you gain
any further points within this 3-year period then you will be required to appear before a
licensing sub-committee where appropriate action will be taken according to the ECC
Penalty Points Scheme.

If you wish to appeal this imposition, you may do so by writing to the Licensing Department
within ten working days of receipt of this letter. You can write to
licensing.team@exeter.gov.uk. The appeal will be determined by the Environmental Health
and Community Safety Manager.

Yours faithfully

Nigel § Mansten

Principal Licensing Officer

Page 117



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 119



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 123



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 125



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 129



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 131



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	Licensing Sub-Committee
	Agenda


	4 Application to Renew Hackney Carriage / Private Hire Vehicle licence over 10  years old
	Appendix A with application form attached_ redacted
	Appendix B V5 attached_redacted
	Appendix C with MOT and History
	APPENDIX C MOT and history.pdf (p.1)
	MOT.pdf (p.2)
	MOT history.pdf (p.3-8)

	Appendix D with VIR attached_redacted
	Appendix E with photos
	APPENDIX E photos.pdf (p.1)
	Car pics.pdf (p.2-4)

	H035 over 10 years committee report draft
	Appendix A with application form attached
	Appendix B V5 attached
	Appendix C with MOT and History- Unredacted
	Appendix D with VIR attached- Unredacted
	Appendix E with photos- Unredacted

	5 Hearing to Determine Whether a Holder of a Hackney Carriage / Private Hire Drivers Licence is a fit and proper person to hold a the licence
	APPENDIX A - Offence_redacted
	APPENDIX B - Community Order & Start Date_redacted
	APPENDIX C - Probation_redacted
	APPENDIX D - Induction_redacted
	APPENDIX E - DBS_redacted
	Appendix F
	310028 - Report
	APPENDIX A - Offence
	APPENDIX B - Community Order & Start Date
	APPENDIX C - Probation
	APPENDIX D - Induction
	APPENDIX E - DBS
	Appendix F- Unredacted

	6 Hearing to Determine Whether a Holder of a Hackney Carriage / Private Hire Drivers Licence is a fit and proper person to hold a the licence
	Appendix A_redacted
	Appendix B_redacted
	Appendix C_redacted
	Appendix D_redacted
	Fit and proper report
	Appendix A
	Appendix B
	Appendix C
	Appendix D




